
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL

Date & Time - Tuesday, 22 September 2015 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Policy Development Panel:

Councillors: D Ashby, J R Astill, M D Booth BEM, R Clark, G K Dark BEM, H Drury, 
L J Eldridge, A Harrison, C N Johnson, J L King, J D McLean, M J Pullen, J L Reynolds, 
M D Seymour (Chairman), A R Woolf (Vice-Chairman) and P A Williams

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn mobile telephones to silent 

mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   14 September 2015



A G E N D A

1. Apologies for absence

2. Declaration of Interests
(Councillors are reminded that under the Code of Conduct they are not 
to participate in the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of transparency, 
councillors may also wish to declare any other interests that they have, 
in relation to an agenda item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed 
within the Code of Conduct.)

3. Medical and Dental Services within the Area
At it’s meeting on 9 June 2015, the Panel raised concerns over the 
provision of medical and dental services within the area, in light of 
increased housing development causing a greater demand on those 
services.

The following representatives will be in attendance to answer 
Councillors’ questions:

 Gary Thompson – South Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group
 Jim Heys – NHS England

4. Street Scene and Pride in the District
The Town Centre Manager, Dennis Hannant, will be in attendance to 
consider issues around Street Scene and Pride in the District, as raised 
at the last Panel meeting on 22 July 2015.

5. Minutes
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 22 July 
2015 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 
1 - 8)

6. Questions asked under Council Procedure Rule 10.3.
 

7. Tracking of recommendations
To consider responses of the Cabinet reports of the Panel, (if any). 
 

8. Items referred from the Performance Monitoring Panel
To consider items referred from the Performance Monitoring Panel (if 
any).

9. Key Decision Plan
To note the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed).
  

(Pages 
9 - 12)

10. Policy Development Panel Work Programme
To consider the Work Programme of the Policy Development Panel 
(report of the Executive Manager - Governance is enclosed).

(Pages 
13 - 22)



11. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. - 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.  



This page is intentionally left blank



- 7 -

Minutes of a meeting of the POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in  Meeting 
Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 22 July 2015 at 
6.30 pm.

PRESENT

M D Seymour (Chairman)
A R Woolf (Vice-Chairman)

D Ashby
J R Astill
M D Booth
R Clark

G K Dark
H Drury
J L King
J D McLean

J L Reynolds
P A Williams

In Attendance:  The Portfolio Holder for Place, the Portfolio Holder for Housing, the 
Shared Executive Manager - Public Protection, the Strategic Housing Manager and 
the  Democratic Services Officer

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors L J Eldridge, 
A Harrison, C N Johnson and M J Pullen.

Action By
11. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

In the interests of transparency, Councillor Drury declared an 
interest in agenda item 4 (Addressing long-term empty homes), 
due to the nature of his work.  However, he did not consider 
himself as having a disclosable pecuniary interest and therefore 
advised that he would remain in the meeting for the debate.

12. STREET SCENE AND PRIDE IN THE DISTRICT 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
At the last meeting of the Panel on 9 June 2015, Councillor Woolf 
had raised concerns regarding the appearance of towns within the 
area, and how they could be made more inviting.  He had 
suggested that the Panel should look at what powers were 
available to the Authority to improve their aspect.  The Principal 
Democratic Services Officer had advised that in January 2014, 
similar issues had been raised and that the Portfolio Holder had 
attended the meeting.  The Panel requested that the relevant 
Portfolio Holder again be asked to attend the meeting in order that 
progress on issues around street scene and pride in the district 
could be discussed.   The Portfolio Holder for Place was therefore 
in attendance to address councillors’ concerns.

The following issues around littering, pride in the district and shop 
frontages were raised:

Page 1

Agenda Item 5.



- 8 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 22 July 
2015

 The Portfolio Holder advised that with regard to covered shop 
frontages, there was no legislation that could be used to 
prevent this. There were controls generally around advertising, 
but there was no legislation around the current appearance of 
shop fronts.  Some areas of the country such as Bath or York, 
had very tight legislation  around the appearance of shops 
however, these controls were not available in this area.

 Councillor Booth commented that businesses should be 
worked with rather than legislated against.  There should be 
pride in the district overall, with problems such as littering 
being addressed.

 The Portfolio Holder reported that the Pride Team was doing 
significant work to raise the standard of the area.  It was 
working to achieve a number of goals, for example, fixed 
penalty fines for littering.  The team was working as hard as it 
could with the limited resources at its disposal.

 The Portfolio Holder advised that there was a new 
Enforcement Officer, and that this position had been paid for 
through re-targeted funding.  Although the role was proving 
successful, it was very difficult for the officer to catch people in 
the actual act of littering. 

 Councillor Reynolds asked whether CCTV could be used to 
identify people dropping litter.  The Portfolio Holder responded 
that once the new CCTV system was activated, it could be 
possible to use this route.

 Councillor McLean asked if the Enforcement Officer could be 
asked to spend some of his time concentrating in particular 
areas where there were higher or particular instances of 
littering etc. The Portfolio Holder advised this could be done in 
areas where a problem was supported by evidence however, 
the Enforcement Officer was a scarce resource and his time 
had to be allocated carefully and effectively.

 Councillor Woolf commented that it was good to see that the 
Pride campaign had so far been successful.  The tidiness of 
the town seemed to be improving.  However, ways needed to 
be found of making the towns more welcoming, and improving 
the appearance of shop frontages was an important element in 
this.

 The Portfolio Holder responded that the area did not have the 
historical background of towns such as Bath and York, that 
were able to enforce tight legislation over these issues.  If a 
similar market town to the ones in the South Holland area 
could be found elsewhere, that had managed to apply 
legislation and create policy on these issues, then 
consideration could be given to using it in this area.  However, 
there had to be a good rationale and evidence to introduce 
this, and it was not straightforward.  The Portfolio Holder 
advised that he would discuss this again with a senior officer 

Page 2



- 9 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 22 July 
2015

in the Planning Department however, it was possible that there 
would be no way forward on this.

 The Portfolio Holder agreed that it would helpful to open up a 
dialogue with shop owners.  Some efforts had been made but 
it was not easy as it was a disparate group.  The Town Centre 
Manager may be the person to undertake this.

 Councillor Drury advised that as a member of the Chamber of 
Commerce, he had previously spoken to shopkeepers and 
invited them to a meeting of the Spalding Town Forum.  
Unfortunately, they had not attended.  He suggested liaising 
with them again, inviting them to a meeting with a marketing 
expert in attendance to suggest alternative ideas for shop 
presentation.  The smaller shops were all in competition with 
supermarkets and needed to increase their customer base by 
attracting more people into their shops.   

 It was suggested that the Town Centre Manager would be the 
most appropriate person to liaise with shop owners and to 
consider with them ideas for attracting people into the towns in 
the area.  It was also felt that because of his links with the 
Chamber of Commerce, Councillor Drury should also liaise 
and have input into this work.  Councillor Drury questioned 
whether this should be undertaken for all towns in the area 
however, it was agreed that Spalding should be the starting 
point and that expansion of this to be officer-led if successful 
in Spalding. 

AGREED:

a) That the update provided by the Portfolio Holder for Place be 
noted;

b) That the Town Centre Manager be requested to liaise with a 
range of shop owners/businesses to enter into a dialogue with 
regard to presentation/frontage, and how to attract people into 
the area, and that Councillor Drury assist with this; and

c) That the Town Centre Manager be requested to attend the 
next Panel meeting  

13. ADDRESSING LONG-TERM EMPTY HOMES 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director, 
Commercialisation, which set out details of the Council’s 
approach to returning long term empty homes to use.  The Policy 
Development Panel had requested that this information be 
provided.

The briefing report was attached at Appendix A, and provided an 

Page 3



- 10 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 22 July 
2015

overview on the following:

 Why the Council sought to return empty homes back to use;
 The relationship between empty homes and the New Homes 

Bonus scheme;
 The action that the Council took to return empty dwellings to 

use; and
 The progress made against the actions within the strategy

The South Holland Empty Homes Strategy 2014-16 was also 
attached at Appendix B.

The Portfolio Holder for Housing and the Strategic Housing 
Manager were in attendance to answer the Panel’s questions.  
The following issues were raised:

 Councillor Lawton wished to acknowledge the work of 
Councillor Chandler and the Strategic Housing Manager in 
driving the Council’s approach to returning long term empty 
homes to use.

 The Panel was advised that as at 10 July 2015, the number of 
empty properties had reduced from 450 to 213.  

 Councillors were very complimentary of the report, stating that 
it was very comprehensive and informative.

 Councillor Seymour asked how often enforcement powers 
were used.  The Strategic Housing Manager advised that 
there had been no enforcement action taken to date.  
Currently, owners were being encouraged and supported to 
move homes back into use.  However, the Council was looking 
to take enforcement action on a small number of property 
owners, and it had various options at its disposal.  

 Councillor Booth asked what the procedure was when a 
property was identified but ownership could not be identified.  
The Strategic Housing Manager advised that the Council used 
various methods and sources to find this information out.  
Local knowledge was also very useful.

 Councillor Woolf asked, where an occupier/tenant died, and 
there were no beneficiaries, how was the Council able to bring 
these properties back into use?  The Strategic Housing 
Manager advised that probate properties were difficult to bring 
back into use, as the Council could do very little whilst they 
were under probate.  These properties were not included in 
calculations for the New Homes Bonus.

 Councillor Drury asked if there were any schemes whereby 
either the local authority or other organisations could acquire a 
property, bring it up  to standard and then sell it on.  The 
Strategic Housing Manager advised that there was currently 

Page 4



- 11 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 22 July 
2015

no such branded scheme however, this option was being 
explored with some properties.  

 Councillor Lawton reiterated that the team were undertaking a 
lot of work on prevention, rather than enforcement, that it was 
a very complex area, and that enforcement was the last resort.

 Sometimes simple, positive work and providing guidance 
could bring homes back into use.  There was a small hard 
core of properties that were difficult to bring back into usage.

AGREED:

a) That the update provided by the Portfolio Holder for Housing 
and the Strategic Housing Manager be noted; and

b) That a further update report be presented to the Panel in six 
months time, at its meeting on 13 January 2016.

14. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2015 were signed by 
the Chairman as a correct record.

Councillor Dark advised that a response to minute 10(g) was still 
outstanding.  It was agreed that a response would be sought prior 
to the next meeting in September.

Members were advised that the request at minute 10(h) for a list 
of the Authority’s current policies was being dealt with.  A list was 
currently being compiled and once complete, would be circulated 
to Panel members. 

15. QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 
          10.3 

There were none. 

16. TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

There were none. 

17. ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
          PANEL 

There were none. 

18. KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan, published on 

Page 5



- 12 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 22 July 
2015

14 July 2015.

AGREED:

That the Key Decision Plan be noted. 

19. POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Interim Executive 
Manager, Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the 
Policy Development Panel.  The Work Programme consisted of 
two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the future 
Panel meetings along with proposed items for consideration, and 
the second setting out the Task Groups that had been identified 
by the Panel.

An action plan addressing the recommendations of the Sir Halley 
Stewart Playing Field Task Group was tabled at the meeting.  The 
Panel was advised that although actions were at various stages of 
completion, many of them would be completed by September.  
Councillor Dark advised that one of the recommendations of the 
Task Group had been for improved management at the Field, 
particularly in controlling service costs.  At the last meeting he had 
requested that information on this be provided prior to the update 
on progress of the Task Group’s recommendations in September.  
This had not yet been received and he again requested the 
information.  Councillors also asked whether the open day would 
be taking place in August 2015.  The Shared Executive Manager, 
Public Protection advised that it would be, that it would be called 
‘Shout and About’ and that it would be targeting clubs,

Councillor McLean asked about the possibility of the introduction 
of an internal Council apprenticeship scheme, and suggested that 
councillors could be included in the development of this.  The 
Shared Executive Manager, Public Protection advised that he and 
the Shared Executive Director Strategy and Governance had met 
with representatives from Boston College with regard to pushing 
this issue forward and developing apprenticeships in the future.  
He advised that officers would be working with Portfolio Holders 
on this initiative.  Currently, this was an officer-led scheme 
however, if there were any issues, councillors could provide input.  
It was agreed that an update on the situation would be brought to 
the Panel’s meeting on 13 January 2016.

In relation to the Pride initiative mentioned earlier in the minutes, 
Councillor McLean advised that he had drawn together 
information from a survey that he had himself undertaken, 
involving people in the Spalding area.  He questioned whether 

Page 6



- 13 -

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 22 July 
2015

this information could be used towards this initiative.  Councillors 
commended him for this work however, it was agreed that this 
could not be dealt with independently, that Councillor McLean 
should take his findings to his Group and if they were backed, 
then they could potentially be taken further. It was also suggested 
that he should speak to the Portfolio Holder for Place about his 
ideas.

Councillor Woolf questioned whether the Leisure Task Group 
should remain on the Work Programme.  The Shared Executive 
Manager, Public Protection advised that officers were currently 
looking at and reviewing issues around Leisure and that the Task 
Group should stay on the Panel’s Work Programme.  

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted;

b) That the Panel be advised of the current situation regarding 
management at the Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field, 
particularly in relation to the control of service costs, prior to 
the update on the Task Group’s recommendations in 
September;

c) That an update report on the development of an 
apprenticeship scheme be brought to the meeting of the Panel 
on 13 January 2016;

d) That the Town Centre Manager be requested to liaise with a 
range of shop owners/businesses to enter into a dialogue with 
regard to presentation/frontage, and how to attract people into 
the area, and that Councillor Drury assist with this, and that 
the Town Centre Manager be requested to attend the next 
Panel meeting; and

e) That a further update report on returning long term empty 
homes to use be presented to the Panel in six months time, at 
its meeting on 13 January 2016.

(The meeting ended at 8.25 p.m.)

(End of minutes)

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1

KEY DECISION PLAN Issued –  26 August 2015

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to: 

Shelley French, Democratic Services Support Officer, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: memberservices@sholland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise stated, 
come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of any decision.  

Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £72,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £178,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 9.

mailto:memberservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

2

Roofing renewal 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new roofing renewal contract 
for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Duncan Hall Between  1 
Sep 2015 and 30 Sep 
2015

Portfolio Holder

Spalding Gypsy 
and Traveller 
Site

To award the works contract. Portfolio Holder for Assets 
and Property, Procurement 
Lincolnshire.

Portfolio Holder briefings – 
ongoing.

Housing Manager 
Between  1 Sep 2015 and 
30 Sep 2015

Portfolio Holder 
for Place

The provision of 
Fleet 
Maintenance for 
Environmental 
Services

To provide long term financial benefits 
and flexibility 

Exempt Item:

Paragraph 3 -  Information relating to 
the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the 
authority holding that information) and 
Paragraph 5 – Information in respect of 
which claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in lgeal 
proceedings. 

Portfolio Holder and 
Director 

Meetings and discussions 

Portfolio Holder for Place 
22 Sep 2015 

P
age 10



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

3

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing 
Landlord

New sewerage 
maintenance 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new sewerage maintenance 
contract for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Manager 
Between  1 Dec 2015 and 
31 Dec 2015

*Cabinet Membership
Councillor G A Porter (Leader of the Council)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor S Slade (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Shelley French, Democratic Services Support Officer, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: memberservices@sholland.gov.uk

P
age 11

mailto:memberservices@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Mark Stinson, Executive Manager – Governance

To: Policy Development Panel - 22 September 2015

(Author: Christine Morgan - Democratic Services Officer

Subject: Policy Development Panel Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Policy Development Panel

Recommendation: 

That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

1.1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 
inclusion on its Work Programme.

1.2 Issues

1.2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  This appendix will be updated as new 
items are identified.

1.2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
shows:

 The name of the task group
 What it wants to achieve
 Key dates
 Membership of the task group
 When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel

1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 
standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the 
opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the 
Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date.

Page 13

Agenda Item 10.



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors 
with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items and 
proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 There are no direct carbon footprint and environmental issue implications associated with 
this report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their carbon 
footprint and environmental issue implications will be assessed.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 There are no direct constitution and legal implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their constitutional and legal 
implications will be assessed.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 There are no direct contract implications associated with this report.  As individual items are 
progressed through the work programme, their contract implications will be assessed.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the work programme, councillors consider the 
suitability of the subject, taking into account such considerations as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the topic 
links to the Council's key aims and priorities.

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 There are no direct crime and disorder implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their crime and disorder 
implications will be assessed.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1 There are no direct equality and diversity or human rights implications associated with this 
report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their equality and 
diversity and human rights implications will be assessed.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 There are no direct financial implications associated with this report.  As individual items 
are progressed through the work programme, their financial implications will be assessed.

5.8 Health & Wellbeing

5.8.1 There are no direct health and wellbeing implications associated with this report.  As 
individual items are progressed through the work programme, their health and wellbeing 

Page 14



implications will be assessed.

5.9 Risk Management 

5.9.1 There are no direct risk management implications associated with this report.  As individual 
items are progressed through the work programme, their risk management implications will 
be assessed. 

5.10 Safeguarding

5.10.1 There are no direct safeguarding implications associated with this report.  As individual 
items are progressed through the work programme, their safeguarding implications will be 
assessed. 

5.11 Staffing

5.11.1 There are no direct staffing implications associated with this report.  As individual items are 
progressed through the work programme, their staffing implications will be assessed.

5.12 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.12.1 There are no direct stakeholder/consultation/timescale implications associated with this 
report.  As individual items are progressed through the work programme, their 
stakeholder/consultation/timescale implications will be assessed.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 When a task group is considered for inclusion on the Panel's Work Programme, it is 
assessed against criteria covering 'Importance', 'Impact', and 'Value for Money'.  The 
'Impact' and 'Value for Money' score indicators consider how strongly the issue will affect a 
ward(s), customer group(s) or service area(s).  Only issues scoring highly will be included 
in the Work Programme.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Christine Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)
Telephone Number: 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Exempt Decision:  No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A
Appendix B 

Work Programme Calendar
Task Group Work Programme 2015/16

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Policy Development Panel – Calendar of Work Programme items

Date of Meeting Agenda items
22 September 2015  Gary Thompson (South Lincolnshire Clinical 

Commissioning Group) and Jim Heys (NHS England) to 
attend the meeting to explain the situation with regard to 
the provision of doctors and dentists in the area.

 The Town Centre Manager, Dennis Hannant, to attend to 
discuss with the Panel issues around Street Scene and 
Pride in the District. 

 Transformation Programme– discussion with the Panel as 
to how it can contribute to the process (Greg Pearson).  
Note: The Panel will be updated at the meeting regarding 
the timetable for this item.

4 November 2015  Matthew Clayton (School Organisation Planning Manager, 
Children’s Services, LCC) to attend the meeting to inform 
the Panel of the situation with regard to primary and 
secondary school provision in the area, and how this 
would be affected by development in the area.

13 January 2016  Update on current situation around long-term empty 
homes (first update received 22/7/15) (Matthew Hogan 
and Councillor C Lawton)

 Update report on the development of an apprenticeship 
scheme (as discussed at PDP 22/7/15) (Phil Adams)

9 March 2016 
26 April 2016 

Note: Taxi Licensing Policy – this policy will now be considered at a future meeting when 
updates have been received on relevant legislation; 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2015/2016

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added to 
Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership of 
Task Group

Proposed date to report 
back to Panel

Leisure Facilities Task 
Group

Joint Task Group 
incorporating members 
of the Performance 
Monitoring and Policy 
Development Panels

To make recommendations, regarding 
the present and future leisure     provision 
in South Holland.

1. By establishing what leisure provision 
the District Council presently 
provides, examining costs, resident 
satisfaction and competitiveness in 
order to identify ways of increasing 
income or reducing expenditure;

2. To understand what the District 
Council wishes to provide and what 
the public and major employers need; 

3. To examine the options for future 
provision either to be supplied by the 
Council, the private sector or shared 
management.

Agreed at PMP 25 November 2014 – A 
date for completion of the Business Plan 
looking at Leisure Services provision, 
being drawn together by the Community 
Development and Health Manager, be 
confirmed by the Assistant Director 
Community, and that a joint meeting of 
the Performance Monitoring Panel and 

30 April 2013 21 January 
2014

G Aley (Chairman)
D Ashby
A Casson
G Dark
R Perkins (Vice-
Chairman)
S Slade
E Sneath
S Wilkinson

Lead Officer: Phil 
Adams

* Membership to 
be considered 
following District 
Council Election

Interim report presented 
to joint PMP/PDP – 19 
August 2014
To Cabinet  7 October 
2014
Tracking of 
recommendations to 
PMP 25 November 2014 
Update on Leisure 
options to PMP 3 March 
2015 (PDP members to 
attend PMP meeting)

P
age 19



Policy Development Panel, for 
consideration of the document, be 
arranged.

Following consideration of the update to 
PMP on 3 March 2015 (PDP members 
were invited to attend), it was agreed that 
leisure provision must be a priority for the 
Council, and must be considered as a 
priority by the next administration 
following the District Council election.

Sir Halley Stewart 
Playing Field Task 
Group

Joint Task Group 
incorporating members 
from the Performance 
Monitoring and Policy 
Development Panels

Outline Purpose of Review…

To look into whether it was possible for 
the Council to extend the use of the Sir 
Halley Stewart Playing Field to wider 
public access, within the scope of the 
deeds.

…..based on the following Terms of 
Reference:

 To establish the situation with regard 
to finances in relation to the Sir Halley 
Stewart Playing Field;

 To establish what activities could be 
undertaken at the Sir Halley Stewart 
Playing Field, and what they would 
cost;

 To establish how the community 
could be included in a wider usage of 
the Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field;

 To consider the promotion of the 
booking and accessibility of the Sir 

11 December 
2013

12 February 
2014

G R Aley
P E Coupland
G K Dark 
(Chairman)
A Harrison
R Perkins
E Sneath

* Membership to 
be considered 
following District 
Council Election

Final report to Council 
21 January 2015
Update from Council 
meeting to PDP 
received 10 February 
2015.
Update to PMP 3 March 
2015 including PDP 
members.

P
age 20



Halley Stewart Playing Field in order 
to ensure that the Public Benefit test 
was met.

Verbal update to PMP meeting on 3 
March 2015, including PDP members, on 
the current situation.  Following this, it 
was agreed to have a further update on 
progress of work programme set up to 
address recommendations made by the 
Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task 
Group to be provided to both Panels in 
September 2015.

Transformation 
Programme

The Transformation Programme is made 
up of four different areas – digitalisation 
of services; how the Authority could best 
use its assets; organisational design; and 
how the Authority could become more 
commercial.
Once confirmation received on 
timescales for the project, Panel to 
programme work into its Work 
Programme.

9 June 2015 TBC TBC TBC

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5. Minutes
	9. Key Decision Plan
	10. Policy Development Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A PDP Work Programme
	Appendix B PDP Work Programme


